GREATER

TOMPKINS COUNTY MUNICIPAL HEALTH INSURANCE CONSORTIUM

Municipalities building a stable insurance future.

Approved 06-28-12

Board of Directors April 26, 2012 5:30 p.m. Scott Heyman Conference Room

Municipal Representatives:

Don Barber, Chair, Town of Caroline; Steve Thayer, City of Ithaca; Anita Fitzpatrick, Tompkins County; Laura Shawley, Town of Danby; Judith Drake, Town of Ithaca; Herb Masser, Town of Enfield; Betty Conger, Village of Groton; Mary Ann Sumner, Town of Dryden (excused at 7:02 p.m.); Lucia Tyler, Town of Ulysses; Elizabeth Karns, Village of Cayuga Heights

Voting Union Representatives:

George Apgar II, Ithaca Professional Fire Fighters Association; President, 2nd Labor Representative

Excused: Chantalise DeMarco, CSEA President, Joint Committee Chair; Rordan Hart Village of Trumansburg

Absent: Glenn Morey, Town of Groton; Charles Becker, Village of Dryden

Others in attendance:

Steve Locey, Locey & Cahill; Sharon Dovi, TC3 Human Resources Manager, Scott Futia, CSEA Deputy Director; David Squires, Tompkins County Finance Director; Joe Mareane, Tompkins County Administrator; Beth Miller, Nora Putnam, Excellus BCBS

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Mr. Barber.

Approval of Minutes – February 23, 2012

It was MOVED by Ms. Sumner, seconded by Ms. Drake, and unanimously adopted by voice vote to approve the minutes of February 23, 2012 as submitted. MINUTES APPROVED.

Financial Update

Mr. Locey distributed a financial update through March 31, 2012. He noted the Consortium now has an unencumbered positive balance of approximately \$120,000. He said Consortium started the year (on a cash basis) with slightly over \$4 million.

There was just under \$6.7 million in premium and \$109,000 in other income received thru March 31st for a total revenue of approximately \$6.82 million. The actual expense was approximately \$6.2 million, of which the majority was medical and prescription drug claims (\$5.64 million) and the remainder being administrative expenses, Stop-Loss, an adjustment payment to Excellus in the amount of \$80,000, and other expenses. There was a net income of \$608,000 for the period, leaving an ending balance of slightly under \$4.7 million. From this amount \$3.14 million has to be allocated to the IBNR Reserve. In summary, the Consortium was in very good shape at the end of the first quarter.

Ms. Karns spoke of the increase in claims from January through March and asked what the normal variation in claims is. Mr. Locey and Mr. Squires said while prescription drug costs typically stay about the same from month to month, medical claims can greatly fluctuate depending on the severity of cases. Ms. Karns spoke of the importance of knowing what drives the large increases and asked how information can be gathered. Mr. Locey said he can obtain a large loss report from Excellus to identify what the driving reason was behind a large spike in costs. *Mr. Locey will contact Excellus to obtain a large loss report for losses over \$50,000 from 2011 and the first quarter of 2012.*

While reviewing the document containing actual results an error was discovered. A payment of \$51,000 should be listed under the NYS Graduate Medical Expense and all other entries moved down one line, increasing the total expenses from \$6,159,899.81 to \$6,210,899.81. *Mr. Locey will correct this on the spreadsheet and will send out a revised spreadsheet.*

Mr. Barber questioned the same number being listed across the spreadsheet for IBNR claims liability and asked if actuarial estimates are being done for the year. Mr. Locey said estimates are based on what the expected accrued claims are going to be for the year, and at this point claims are being paid for last year and some from this year. Therefore, each month actual claims are going to be very close to the incurred claims and moving forward incurred claims are going to look much like paid claims. He said the State is asking some questions about the IBNR but it appears they are not challenging this but trying to understand it. From this point forward the number that will be represented in the IBNR will be what the Consortium would expect to pay out in claims from this point forward since there has been a year of claims.

Mr. Mareane said premiums increased as of January 1st and asked if it is the expectation that because revenues were raised, if expenditures should be below the new revenue level and over the course of the year there would be a break-even or growth. Mr. Locey said there should be steady growth in revenue throughout the year and noted part of the reason premiums were raised was to further bolster the reserve. He also spoke of the need to increase premiums because of the inflation that can be expected in medical claims.

Mr. Locey reviewed the 2012 budget and said at this time claims are below budget by approximately 18%. Based on projections outlined in the Paid Claims Development Model, claims are 1.69% below where they were projected to be for the first 15 months. If the Consortium continues on this pace the repayment schedule for the capitalization payments should be able to be accelerated.

Mr. Locey presented the 2011 financial results and provided the following summary: The Fund Balance began at \$1.44 million. There was a net income of \$1.836 million, bringing the Fund Balance total to \$3.3 million. There were \$3.914 in total liabilities and reserves, leaving a \$656,000 negative balance. However, this negative amount was able to offset by being able to accrue things such as prescription drug rebates, Stop-Loss payments, insurance recoveries, and the \$718,000 advance payment to Excellus. Mr. Locey distributed and reviewed the financial results on an accrual basis; the results of this report show an ending balance of \$41,634.

At this time Mr. Locey distributed a report entitled "2011 Triangle Report" based on Excellus BCBS and Medco reports showing claims that were both incurred and paid in each of the months January 2011 thru March 2012. He explained the IBNR calculation and said the report shows the total incurred claims was \$24.8 million and the total IBNR for the period was \$2.6 million. This includes the \$1.28 million (IBNR/IBNP) plus what is expected to be paid for the period. This is the amount that will be reported to the State and represents 10.524% of the total incurred for the time period.

Ms. Tyler asked if the Stop-Loss insurance would provide coverage if there were some type of catastrophic event that impacted a large number of employees. Mr. Locey explained there are two levels of Stop-Loss insurance: Specific covers each individual covered under the plan and once the individual's claims goes above \$250,000 incurred in a given year and three months into the new year, the Stop-Loss insurance carriers pays every dollar above that; Aggregate Stop-Loss covers the entire group – if the Consortium exceeds its budget by 125% this coverage would go into effect.

Mr. Locey provided the Board with the 2011 Quarterly Report that is provided to the State and reviewed the contents. The report will be posted on the website.

Health Care Exchanges

Mr. Locey explained the State Legislature did not approve legislation to create healthcare exchanges that are part of the Affordable Healthcare Act. Each state is supposed to create healthcare exchanges that are intended to be an avenue for individuals and small employers to purchase health insurance through pools of benefit programs and insurance companies that would be established and coordinated by a state agency. A lot of states are not passing legislation and stating they are not going to do this. In New York the Legislature did not approve legislation; however, Governor Cuomo issued an Executive Order establishing a Statewide Health Exchange. As more is learned about this he will report back to the Board.

Health Insurance Buy-outs, Open Enrollment, and Pre-existing Conditions

Mr. Locey reported several questions have been asked through e-mail recently relative to the rules associated with these items. He provided a memo outlining each of these areas and summarized each as follows.

Pre-existing Condition: All plans provided through the Consortium provide benefits from the first date of coverage regardless of whether an illness or injury is a new occurrence or one which existed prior to enrollment in the plan. Mr. Locey said

by not having a policy concerning pre-existing conditions, someone could choose to take the health insurance when things are good, and then take out a policy at the time a need arises. However, there are many difficulties in trying to limit someone's health insurance coverage due to a pre-existing condition.

Employee Buy-outs: Mr. Locey said for a municipal self-insured environment, in many cases it doesn't make sense to offer buy-outs. He provided examples and said if premium has to be spread amongst the group to cover the lost revenue everyone will share in the expense. This also can result in employers competing against each other to get the employee buy-out high enough to entice someone to leave the plan, in addition to people going off the plan who aren't spending a lot of money.

Ms. Sumner said because the Town of Dryden pays 100% of the premium for older employees there is never any reason for any of them to opt out; however, she feels strongly this cannot be offered to people who don't have other coverage.

This is something the Board may wish to discuss in detail at a future time.

Presentation on Utilization Data from Excellus

Ms. Putnam, Information Consultant for Excellus, distributed copies of the Consortium's Health Management Report containing a high level review of claims that were incurred for 2011, and reviewed the items below contained the report. It was noted the figures do not include prescription drug costs and typically medical accounts for 70% of the costs; and the comparison population that was used includes 675,000 members with an average member age is 35 and average subscriber age is 48.

Demographics of the Consortium

- The population in 2011 2,001 contracts; 4,406 members;
- Average contract size: 2.2 members;
- Average membership age was 41; average subscriber age is 53;
- 51% of the population is male;

Financial Measures

- Plan cost in 2011 \$16,886,753;
- Plan cost per member in 2011 average of \$319 per member per month (claims);
- The plan cost per member per year in 2011 was 28% higher than the comparison population;
- The member cost share is 3% with the average member cost per contract at \$267; and
- 98% of the plan costs were remitted to a participating provider, with a savings of 33%

Plan Cost Distribution and High Cost Claimants

• 89% of the membership accessed care in 2011;

- 3% of the membership with claims in excess of \$25,000 accounted for 33% of the plan cost; and
- Three members had claims over \$250,000 and are forecasted to have claims grater than \$50,000 over the next 12 months;

Utilization

- The outpatient setting accounted for 40% of plan costs followed by the Physician setting with 38%;
- Physician office visits were 35% higher than the comparison population. The average total cost per visit was \$83;
- Emergency Room visits were 25% higher than the comparison with 19% of those visits classified as potentially avoidable visits. Emergency Room average costs per visit was \$1,302;
- The most costly and prevalent conditions amenable to prevention or optimal management include back pain – 19%, hypertension – 12%, and depression/anxiety – 11%.

Ms. Putnam will look into how urgent care center use is captured in the report and how chiropractic is correlated to back pain information. Ms. Miller said this report will be reviewed in more detail with the Joint Committee on Plan Structure and Design.

Update on New Excellus Claims Software Timeline

Ms. Miller distributed information and reviewed the timeline and information related to the upgraded Excellus system that will take effect on January 1, 2013. She said there are five groups that will having a product change: City of Ithaca, Town of Danby, Town of Groton, and the Village of Cayuga Heights Traditional plans will move to Classic Blue, and the County's Value Plan will move to the Comprehensive Classic Blue Plan. The entire Consortium will be moving to the new system and she extended an offer to all municipalities to meet with staff to go over the changes and enhancements.

Report from Joint Committee on Plan Structure and Design

Ms. Shawley, Vice Chair, reported the Committee has been reviewing the Requests for Proposals for the Employee Assistance, Flex Spending, and Prescription Benefit Manager Programs. The Committee also received presentations on CanaRx and the Excellus upgrade. Mr. Barber encouraged members to attend next week's meeting to hear a more thorough review of claims as well as a presentation from Jed Constantz and Dr. Loehr from Cayuga Family Medicine about Patient Centered Medical Homes. The goal is to identify risks, work with high-cost patients, and to reduce costs.

Report from the Strategic Planning Committee

Mr. Barber, Chair, reported the Committee meets bi-monthly and has been talking about how individuals can own their own health, wellness programs, and initiatives that are taking place to help people become more involved in taking control of their health.

Mr. Barber reported at the last meeting he was directed to work on a confidentiality agreement and sharing Consortium data with CAP Connect. A copy of the confidentiality and business agreements were received and reviewed. A number of questions were brought forward and are now in the process of being reviewed. Mr. Locey is looking into whether the Consortium can authorize the release of data or whether each employer that is part of the Consortium has to sign off on the release of the data. Mr. Barber said discussions with CAP Connect are continuing and include details relating to the annual payment that was presented by CAP in addition to the how to determine what savings there would be for the Consortium. Mr. Barber and Ms. Karns will be meeting with CAP tomorrow to discuss this further.

Ms. Karns said she would like to know what percentage of Consortium members are using providers outside of the County.

Adjournment

On motion the meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by Michelle Pottorff, Administrative Clerk